W e ~NOYWU Pk WN R

ADEA DD DD WWWWWWWWWWNRNDNNNNNNNNNRERERRERERRRRRRE
AW NPRPOOVOONOUDE WNPEPOWOWOLONOUE WNRER OWOLKLNOOUEREWNEO

LONDONDERRY ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
268B MAMMOTH ROAD
LONDONDERRY, NH 03053

MINUTES FROM 03/15/23 MEETING

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. Members introduced themselves. The following
members were present: Jacqueline Benard, Chair; Suzanne Brunelle, Vice Chair; Brendan O’Brien,
Clerk; Mitch Feig, member; Irene Macarelli, member; Chris Moore, alternate member; and Robert
Robicsek. Also, participating was Nick Codner, Chief Building Inspector; Kellie Caron, Assistant Town
Manager/Director of Economic Development; Mike Malaguti, Town Manager; and Beth Morrison,
Recording Secretary.

I APPROVAL OF MINUTES -

S. Brunelle made a motion to accept the February 15, 2023, meeting minutes as
presented.

The motion was seconded by B. O’Brien
The motion was granted, 5-0-0.
1. REPORT BY TOWN COUNCIL — None

[l REGIONAL IMPACT DETERMINATIONS: K. Caron informed the Board that she had nine
projects for their consideration.

1. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-1: Request for a variance from LZO 4.4.1.3.A.1.a to encroach 9.4 feet into
the 30-foot front setback for an existing building, 43 Harvey Road, Map 14 Lot 44-2, Zoned IND-II,
Forty Three Harvey Rd Real Inc. (Owner & Applicant).

2. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-2: Request for a variance from LZO 4.4.1.3.H.1 to encroach 9.4 feet into

the 15-foot greenspace for an existing building, 43 Harvey Road, Map 14 Lot 44-2, Zoned IND-l,
Forty Three Harvey Rd Real Inc. (Owner & Applicant).

3. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-3: Request for a variance from LZO 4.4.1.3.D.1 to allow outdoor storage
of company owned vehicles, 43 Harvey Road, Map 14 Lot 44-2, Zoned IND-Il, Forty Three Harvey
Rd Real Inc. (Owner & Applicant).

B. O’Brien made a motion that the cases are not of regional impact.

The motion was seconded by I. Macarelli.

The motion was granted by, 5-0-0.



46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91

4. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-4: Request for a variance from LZO 4.1.2 Use Table to allow
manufacturing (brewery) in the C-1 zone which is otherwise prohibited, 44 Nashua Road (Unit 17),
Map 7 Lot 67, Zoned C-I, Leeman Corporation (Owner) and Paul Kelly (Applicant).

B. O’Brien made a motion that the cases are not of regional impact.

The motion was seconded by I. Macarelli.
The motion was granted by, 5-0-0.

5. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-5: Request for a variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.b to allow an existing sign
with height of 17 feet whereas a maximum of 10 feet is permitted in RTE 102 POD & C-I district,
107 Nashua Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-I & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road Properties, LLC
(Owner) John Manelas Applicant).

6. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-6: Request for a variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.c.i to allow an existing sign
with area of 63 square feet whereas a maximum of 30 square feet is permitted in RTE 102 POD &
C-1 district, 107 Nashua Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-1 & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road
Properties, LLC (Owner) John Manelas Applicant).

7. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-7: Request for a variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.d to allow an existing sign
within 10 feet of the front property line in RTE 102 POD & C-I district, 107 Nashua Road Map 6 Lot
35-1, Zoned C-I & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road Properties, LLC (Owner) John Manelas
Applicant).

8. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-8: Request for a variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.e.i to allow an existing
pole sign whereas a monument sign type is required in RTE 102 POD & C-| district, 107 Nashua
Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-I & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road Properties, LLC (Owner) John
Manelas Applicant).

9. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-9: Request for a variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.4.b to allow a wall sign with
an area 96 square feet whereas a maximum of 30 square feet is permitted in RTE 102 POD & C-
district, 107 Nashua Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-1 & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road Properties,
LLC (Owner) John Manelas Applicant).

B. O’Brien made a motion that the cases are not of regional impact.

The motion was seconded by I. Macarelli.

The motion was granted by, 5-0-0.

. PUBLIC HEARING OF CASES

A. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-1: Request for a variance from LZO 4.4.1.3.A.1.a to encroach 9.4 feet
into the 30-foot front setback for an existing building, 43 Harvey Road, Map 14 Lot 44-2, Zoned
IND-II, Forty Three Harvey Rd Real Inc. (Owner & Applicant)

2



92

93

94

95

96

97

98

212
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
118
120

2k
122
123
124
125
126

127

128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136

B. O’Brien read the case into the record noting the previous zoning. Jordan Young, PE, from Atlantic Civil
Engineering, PLLC, 13 Old Chester Road, Derry, NH addressed the Board. John from Mainline Plumbing
was in attendance as well. J. Young started the discussion by stating that the parcel in question is located
at 43 Harvey Road, which is a corner lot in the IND-Il zone. He went on stating that the owner would like
to change the current building, which is a living space with two tenants into a business, named Mainline
Plumbing. J. Young noted the variance is regarding encroaching into the 30-foot front building setback.
He mentioned that the agenda reads they are encroaching 9.4-feet into the setback, but they are actually
encroaching 20.6 into the front setback, as the building is 9.4-feet from the property line. He explained
that they are not changing the building and there will be six offices in the building. He said that they are
proposing 54 parking spaces and has access of Burton Drive and Harvey Road. He noted that the owner
has a hard time keeping tenants, as the building is surrounded by commercial businesses.

He then read the criteria for granting the variance:

(1) The granting of the variance is not contrary to the public interest: because the building is staying as
is and the owner is proposing to change the use to a permitted use in this zone.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance is observed: because the applicant is proposing to change the use to a
business which makes this property closer aligned to the ordinance than as it exists now.

(3) Substantial justice is done: because the owner of the property is subject to loss if the variance is
denied.

(4) Values of surrounding properties are not diminished: because the building already sits 20.6-feet
inside the front building setback.

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because the
building already sits 20.6-feet inside the front building setback and to meet the requirement the
owner would have to demolish the building and rebuild it 20.6-feet further back. He said that the
proposed use is reasonable.

Chairwoman Benard asked for questions from the Board.She asked about the typo that the
representative noted. K. Caron replied that his application states 20.6-feet, so that is fine. C. Moore asked
if the building was built pre-zoning. J. Young replied it was built in 1993. C. Moore asked if the third case
should be done first. Chairwoman Benard noted that this building was not built pre-zoning. She said that
it is a change of use. M. Feig asked if they needed a variance when they built the building. M. Malaguti
replied that it does not matter. K. Caron noted that it is a pre-existing, non-conforming structure and
anytime you make a change, you need to comply with zoning. C. Moore asked if the applicant did not have
to comply with the setback because the variance was just for the sign. K. Caron replied that would be her
understanding. Chairwoman Benard asked if this was going to be a plumbing business. John from Mainline
Plumbing replied that is correct. Chairwoman Benard asked if there is a problem keeping tenants. J. Young
replied that is correct.

Chairwoman Benard asked for public input and there was none.

Chairwoman Benard brought the discussion back to the Board. M. Feig asked if there are going to be six
offices. J. Young replied that is correct. Chairwoman Benard asked how large the building is now. J. Young

2



137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
154
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178

179
180

replied that it is about 3,200 SF. M. Feig asked if there is any concern related to sight line or the driveway.
N. Codner replied that there is no issue.

The Board closed public input and began deliberation:

(1) The variance would not be contrary to the public interest: because it would not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood and there are no public health concerns.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance would be observed: because it would not alter the essential character
of the neighborhood or public health concerns.

(3) Substantial justice would be done: because the loss to the applicant would outweigh any gain to
the general public.

(4) Values of the surrounding properties would not be diminished: because it is in an industrial zone
currently.

(5) There is not a fair and substantial relationship that exists between the general public purposes of
the ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property: because the
property is unique given it is a corner lot and surrounded by industrial properties. The proposed use is
a reasonable one.

B. O’Brien made a motion in CASE NO. 03/15/2023-1 to grant the request for a
variance from LZO 4.4.1.3.A.1.a to encroach 20.6-feet into the 30-foot front setback
for an existing building, 43 Harvey Road, Map 14 Lot 44-2, Zoned IND-II, Forty Three
Harvey Rd Real Inc. (Owner & Applicant) with the following condition that the
petitioner shall obtain site plan approval for the proposed use.

I. Macarelli seconded the motion.

The motion was granted, 5-0-0. The applicant’s request for a variance was GRANTED
with conditions.

B. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-2: Request for a variance from LZO 4.4.1.3.H.1 to encroach 9.4 feet into
the 15-foot greenspace for an existing building, 43 Harvey Road, Map 14 Lot 44-2, Zoned IND-II,
Forty Three Harvey Rd Real Inc. (Owner & Applicant).

B. O’Brien read the case into the record noting the previous zoning. Jordan Young, PE, from Atlantic Civil
Engineering, PLLC, 13 Old Chester Road, Derry, NH addressed the Board. J. Young pointed out that it
should be 5.6-feet into the 15-foot green space. Chairwoman Benard asked if the presentation was the
same as the previous case. J. Young replied that is correct.

He then read the criteria for granting the variance:

(1) The granting of the variance is not contrary to the public interest: because the building is staying as
is and the owner is proposing to change the use to a permitted use in this zone.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance is observed: because the applicant is proposing to change the use to a
business which makes this property closer aligned to the ordinance than as it exists now.



181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190

191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225

(3) Substantial justice is done: because the owner of the property is subject to loss if the variance is
denied.

(4) Values of surrounding properties are not diminished: because the building already sits 5.4-feet
inside the front green area.

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because the
building already sits 5.6-feet inside the front green area to meet the requirement the owner would
have to demolish the building and rebuild 5.6-feet further back. He said that the proposed use is
reasonable.

Chairwoman Benard asked for questions from the Board and there were none.
Chairwoman Benard asked for public input and there was none.
The Board closed public input and began deliberation:

(1) The variance would not be contrary to the public interest: because it does not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance would be observed: because it does not alter the essential character of
the neighborhood.

(3) Substantial justice would be done: because the loss to the applicant outweighs any gain to the
general public.

(4) Values of the surrounding properties would not be diminished: because it is already in an industrial
zone.

(5) There is not a fair and substantial relationship that exists between the general public purposes of
the ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property: because the
property is unique as it is a corner lot and surrounded by the industrial zone. The proposed use is a
reasonable one.

B. O’Brien made a motion in CASE NO. 03/15/2023-2 the grant the request for a
variance from LZO 4.4.1.3.H.1 to encroach 5.6-feet into the 15-foot greenspace for
an existing building, 43 Harvey Road, Map 14 Lot 44-2, Zoned IND-Il, Forty Three
Harvey Rd Real Inc. (Owner & Applicant).

I. Macarelli seconded the motion.
The motion was granted, 5-0-0. The applicant’s request for a variance was GRANTED.
C. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-3: Request for a variance from LZO 4.4.1.3.D.1 to allow outdoor
storage of company owned vehicles, 43 Harvey Road, Map 14 Lot 44-2, Zoned IND-II, Forty
Three Harvey Rd Real Inc. (Owner & Applicant).
B. O’Brien read the case into the record noting the previous zoning. Jordan Young, PE, from Atlantic Civil

Engineering, PLLC, 13 Old Chester Road, Derry, NH addressed the Board. John from Mainline Plumbing
was also in attendance this evening.



226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233

234
235
236
237
238
239

240
241

242
243
244
245
246

247

248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270

He then read the criteria for granting the variance:

(1) The granting of the variance is not contrary to the public interest: because the proposed parking lot
will be screened by vegetation in the front of Burton Drive and Harvey Road. He added that this
property has many abutters with parking lots between the building and the roadway. He said that
they believe the public will appreciate the effort the owner is making to satisfy the ordinance to the
maximum extent possible.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance is observed: because the location of the existing home, on a corner lot,
presents a challenge to meet this requirement and the owner is proposing screening from the road
so vehicles stored overnight do not become and eyesore from Burton Drive. He added that these
company vehicles will not be in this parking lot during business hours.

(3) Substantial justice is done: because the owner of the property is subject to loss if the variance is
denied.

(4) Values of surrounding properties are not diminished: because the proposed parking will be
screened from Harvey Road and Burton Drive.

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because the
property is a corner lot, having frontage on both sides of the property and the existing building is
located so that parking is very limited with only having eight parking spaces. He said that the
proposed use is reasonable.

Chairwoman Benard asked for questions from the Board. S. Brunelle asked for the size of the lot. J. Young
replied that it is 5.18 acres. S. Brunelle asked if there was any other place to park vehicles. J. Young
reviewed the site noting it is encumbered by wetlands and setbacks. C. Moore asked how many parking
spaces they are requesting. J. Young replied 54 parking spaces. C. Moore asked if all vehicle spaces will be
occupied. J. Young asked if he meant the parking spaces would be occupied by vehicle storage. C. Moore
replied storage. J. Young replied that eight or nine vehicles that would be parked there overnight. C.
Moore asked why they need so many spaces. J. Young replied that the employees would have their
personal vehicles and utility vehicles that would be on site during the day, but only the vans would be
parked there overnight. Chairwoman Benard asked for the operating hours. John from Mainline Plumbing
replied Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Chairwoman Benard asked how many employees. J.
Young replied that they have five right now, but are planning to double this as they are growing.
Chairwoman Benard asked if there would be customers coming in. John from Mainline Plumbing replied
they go to the customers. M. Feig asked about parking spaces, and how many people are working there
during the day. John from Mainline Plumbing replied that within two years he wants to have all six offices
filled and the trucks also take up a little bit bigger space that a regular vehicle. M. Feig asked if the spaces
would be used for any other reason. J. Young replied that it would be used for the business. S. Brunelle
said that her only concern is having vehicles parked there overnight. M. Feig stated that the Board can
place a restriction that there is only overnight parking for the business and nothing else. S. Brunelle
pointed out that if the variance is granted, they can store 56 vehicles overnight here. Chairwoman Benard
said that the Board cannot police this as it is private residence. C. Moore said that if it is screened, then
no one could see the vehicles. Chairwoman Benard stressed that it states company owned vehicles.

Chairwoman Benard asked for public input and there was none.



271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315

The Board closed public input and began deliberation:

(1) The variance would not be contrary to the public interest: because it does not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance would be observed: because it does not alter the essential character of
the neighborhood nor threaten the health, safety or welfare of the general public.

(3) Substantial justice would be done: because there is no gain to the public by denying the variance.
(4) Values of the surrounding properties would not be diminished: because it is already an industrial
area.

(5) There is not a fair and substantial relationship that exists between the general public purposes of
the ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property: because the
property is unique as it is a corner lot, in an industrial zone and the site has extensive wetlands. The
proposed use is a reasonable one. '

B. O’Brien made a motion in CASE NO. 03/15/2023-3 to grant the request for a
variance from LZ0 4.4.1.3.D.1 to allow outdoor storage of company owned vehicles,
43 Harvey Road, Map 14 Lot 44-2, Zoned IND-II, Forty Three Harvey Rd Real Inc.
(Owner & Applicant).

M. Feig seconded the motion.

The motion was granted, 4-1-0, with S. Brunelle opposed. The applicant’s request for
a variance was GRANTED.

D. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-4: Request for a variance from LZO 4.1.2 Use Table to allow
manufacturing (brewery) in the C-1 zone which is otherwise prohibited, 44 Nashua Road (Unit
17), Map 7 Lot 67, Zoned C-l, Leeman Corporation (Owner) and Paul Kelly (Applicant).

B. O’'Brien read the case into the record noting the previous zoning. C. Moore recused himself from the
case. Paul Kelly, 68 Haven Drive, Auburn, NH addressed the Board. P. Kelly told the Board that he is
requesting a variance for the manufacturing portion of having a brewpub at 44 Nashua Road, as it is
currently zoned for retail only. He went on stating that he is looking add the brewpub portion to the
restaurant so that he can offer more beverages other than just his own beer. He told the Board that this
is due to the Liquor Commission’s rules around breweries. Chairwoman Benard asked what is currently
in this location. P. Kelly replied that it used to be Talia’s restaurant. M. Feig asked if he was putting in a
restaurant in this location. P. Kelly replied that it would be a tap room for his brewery, and he serves
some food right now, such as pizza, cheeseburgers and sandwiches. S. Brunelle asked where he currently
operates out of. P. Kelly replied Derry at Kelsen Brewing Company. He noted that he is being relocated
because of Exit 4A project. He said that he needs a brewpub license to do this. Chairwoman Benard asked
if he would keep his Derry location. P. Kelly replied that he is separating it out, with a production room
in Derry and tap room in Londonderry. S. Brunelle asked what he is manufacturing in Londonderry. P.
Kelly replied that in order to obtain a brewpub license, he has to manufacture no more than 2000 barrels
per year of beer, but there is no minimum. He added that he can manufacture five gallons a month. M.
Feig asked why he could not be restaurant. P. Kelly replied that the state has a three tier system and as



316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324

325
326

32/
328

329
330
331
332
333
334

335

336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
351
358
359
360

a brewery owner, he cannot own a restaurant. R. Robicsek asked if the brewing of beer triggers the
variance request. P. Kelly replied that is correct.

He then read the criteria for granting the variance:

(1) The granting of the variance is not contrary to the public interest: because the allowance of a small
manufacturing facility would not be contrary as it is in line with what he already does. He said that
it would not impede any other business. He said that it is in the back corner and only would be
operated once a month.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance is observed: because the addition of small manufacturing facility would
not be visible or impacting any other business.

(3) Substantial justice is done: because the owner of the property is subject to loss if the variance is
denied.

(4) Values of surrounding properties are not diminished: because the surrounding area is commercial
and no one could see it.

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because the
current zone allows a restaurant and he does not think this is much different. He said that the
proposed use is reasonable.

Chairwoman Benard asked for questions from the Board. She asked N. Codner asked why his use is
considered manufacturing, as there are other restaurants at this location that serve beer and wine. N.
Codner replied that other breweries in town have been labeled manufacturing, since they are using raw
products. Chairwoman Benard asked if his brewery were to move from this location, could it allow for the
manufacturing of something other than beer. N. Codner replied that the Board can place a restriction that
he only brew beer at five galloons per month. S. Brunelle asked for more clarification on the fifth point of
law, which would apply to his particular unit, as there are many other units in the area that all look the
same to her. P. Kelly replied that he might not have understood that last question. He stated that he
changed to a brewpub license as he has had many people complaining at his Derry location that they do
not like beer and wanted to be able to reach out to a larger audience. Chairwoman Benard asked if the
license he sought from the state is forcing him to have a minimum brewing requirement to keep his pub
license. P. Kelly replied that is correct. S. Brunelle asked if breweries in the manufacturing zone are
allowed to serve food. N. Codner replied that they are allowed to manufacture beer in the industrial zone,
but cannot have a restaurant in the industrial zone. He said that as a brewpub they need to have food. He
said that they can provide food, but cannot be a restaurant. He reiterated that the Board can place a
restriction such as he is limited to brew only five gallons a month. Chairwoman Benard asked if he has a
brewpub license. P. Kelly replied that is correct. S. Brunelle asked if this works out in Derry. P. Kelly replied
that the location in Derry is zoned for both. S. Brunelle stated that Londonderry does not have such a
zone.

Chairwoman Benard asked for public input.
Karen Manelas, Six Longview Circle, Pelham, NH, addressed the Board in favor of granting the variance.

She said that in her opinion the hardship would be because Londonderry does not have such a zone or
definition.



361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
362
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404

Chairwoman asked if the Board had any other questions. S. Brunelle mentioned that the Board can place
a restriction, but it would not help with the hardship. Chairwoman Benard pointed out that the Board
granted a variance for a brewpub, of which the brewpub is having a hard time adhering to the regulations.
M. Feig noted that the main issue is that Londonderry does not have a brewpub. S. Brunelle explained
that the Board does not set a precedent, as every case is different. Chairwoman Benard commented that
for cases like this it is important to document why the Board voted in the manor they did. S. Brunelle
remarked that the property can be used for something else. Chairwoman Benard stated that the applicant
would not be able to go anywhere in Londonderry as a brewpub. M. Feig asked if this was correct. N.
Codner replied that there is no place for this in Londonderry at this time. B. O’Brien expressed his opinion
that the property is not unique and there is no way around it at this time. Chairwoman Benard explained
that the zoning ordinance would need to be updated, but that will not help the applicant this evening. K.
Caron interjected that another opportunity is to continue the application if the Board would like more
information and cannot make a decision this evening. Chairwoman Benard asked if the applicant would
be willing to have the case continued to the April 19, 2023, meeting, in order for the Board to gather more
information. P. Kelly said that he was okay with the Board continuing the case.

B. O’Brien made a motion to continue CASE NO. 03/15/2023-4 request for a variance
from LZO 4.1.2 Use Table to allow manufacturing (brewery) in the C-l zone which is
otherwise prohibited, 44 Nashua Road (Unit 17), Map 7 Lot 67, Zoned C-l, Leeman
Corporation (Owner) and Paul Kelly (Applicant) until the April 19, 2023, meeting.

S. Brunelle seconded the motion.

The motion was granted, 5-0-0. The applicant’s request for a variance was continued
until April 19, 2023.

(The Board took a break from 8:21 p.m. to 8:25 p.m. C. Moore left the meeting at this time) '

E. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-5: Request for a variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.b to allow an existing
sign with height of 17-feet whereas a maximum of 10-feet is permitted in RTE 102 POD & C-I
district, 107 Nashua Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-l & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road
Properties, LLC (Owner) John Manelas (Applicant).

B. O’Brien read the case into the record noting the previous zoning. Paul Botting, from ProSource Signs
Inc., Four Peabody Road Annex, Unit 3, Derry, NH, addressed the Board. Karen & John Manelas, owners
of the property were also in attendance. P. Botting started the discussion off by noting the sign is a pre-
existing, non-conforming sign that was in conformance prior to the establishment of the Route 102
Performance Overlay zone. He explained that they want to repaint, upgrade the LED, reduce energy
consumption and install new sign faces to direct people to their location. He noted that there is a similar
sign next to their building that was previously granted by this Board.

He then read the criteria for granting the variance:



405
406
407
408
409

410
411

412
413

414
415
416
417

418

419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448

(1) The granting of the variance is not contrary to the public interest: because by refurbishing the legally
pre-existing pole sign will improve the appearance of the property and does not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood nor threaten the health, safety or welfare of the general public.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance is observed: because the spirit of the ordinance will be observed allowing
the use of the legally pre-existing pole sign.

(3) Substantial justice is done: because the owner of the property is subject to loss if the variance is
denied.

(4) Values of surrounding properties are not diminished: because the legally pre-existing pole sign has
stood in this location for many years without a negative impact on surrounding property values.

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because the pole
sign is a legally pre-existing sign and not being able to reuse this sign will mean a new sign will have
to be constructed. He said that the proposed use is reasonable.

Chairwoman Benard asked for questions from the Board. S. Brunelle asked if there is a picture of the
existing sign. K. Manelas replied that right now it bare, it just the empty box attached to the pole sign. S.
Brunelle asked if the sign is going to be bigger. K. Caron replied that it is not. M. Feig asked if the structure
was sound. P. Botting replied that the structure is sound, but just the lighting and painting need to be
updated. Chairwoman Benard asked if the applicant could just use one square, instead of the two they
are proposing, to comply with the height requirement. P. Botting replied that they would not and would
still be too high. Chairwoman Benard replied that she does not have any information to come to that
conclusion. P. Botting replied that the top box is about two-feet wide. Chairwoman Benard asked why this
cannot be brought down to 10-feet. P. Botting replied that it would make it more difficult for the motoring
public on Route 102 to be able to see the sign from the street. Chairwoman Benard asked if 10-feet is the
standard in the Route 102 Overlay zone. N. Codner replied that it is correct. K. Manelas reviewed another
picture noting the Renegades sign and that it would be the same height as that one.

Chairwoman Benard asked for public input and there was none.

Chairwoman Benard asked for more clarification on the fifth point of law. K. Manelas replied that she
believed visibility was the issue. She added that they are landlocked and are crossing over other people’s
property to get to their site. The Board closed public input and began deliberation:

(1) The variance would not be contrary to the public interest: because it does not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance would be observed: because it does not threaten the health, safety or
welfare of the general public and actually provides a safety benefit for people to be able to see the sign
in a high traffic area.

(3) Substantial justice would be done: because the loss to the applicant outweighs any gain to the
general public.

(4) Values of the surrounding properties would not be diminished: because it is an existing sign in a
commercial area.

(5) There is not a fair and substantial relationship that exists between the general public purposes of
the ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property: because the

10



449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481

482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493

property is unique as it is landlocked and the visibility of the sign in a high traffic area. The proposed
use is a reasonable one.

B. O’Brien made a motion in CASE NO. 03/15/2023-5 to grant the request for a
variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.b to allow an existing sign with height of 17-feet
whereas a maximum of 10 feet is permitted in RTE 102 POD & C- district, 107 Nashua
Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-1 & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road Properties, LLC
(Owner) John Manelas (Applicant).

S. Brunelle seconded the motion.
The motion was granted, 5-0-0. The applicant’s request for a variance was GRANTED.

F. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-6: Request for a variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.c.i to allow an existing
sign with area of 63 square feet whereas a maximum of 30 square feet is permitted in RTE 102
POD & C-I district, 107 Nashua Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-1 & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road
Properties, LLC (Owner) John Manelas Applicant).

B. O’'Brien read the case into the record noting the previous zoning. Paul Botting, from ProSource Signs
Inc., Four Peabody Road Annex, Unit 3, Derry, NH addressed the Board. Karen & John Manelas, owners,
were also in attendance this evening. Chairwoman Benard asked if all his answers would be the same as
the previous variance request. P. Botting replied that is correct. S. Brunelle asked if the sign would be
any larger. P. Botting replied that it would not.

He then read the criteria for granting the variance:

(1) The granting of the variance is not contrary to the public interest: because by refurbishing the legally
pre-existing pole sign will improve the appearance of the property and does not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance is observed: because the spirit of the ordinance will be observed allowing
the use of the legally pre-existing pole sign.

(3) Substantial justice is done: because the owner of the property is subject to loss if the variance is
denied.

(4) Values of surrounding properties are not diminished: because the legally pre-existing pole sign has
stood in this location for many years without a negative impact on surrounding property values.

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because the
property the pole sign is a legally pre-existing sign and not being able to reuse this sign will mean a
new sign will have to be constructed. He said that the proposed use is reasonable.

Chairwoman Benard asked for questions from the Board and there were none.
Chairwoman Benard asked for public input and there was none.

The Board closed public input and began deliberation:

11



494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
931
532
533
534
535

536
537

(1) The variance would not be contrary to the public interest: because it does not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance would be observed: because it does not threaten the health, safety or
welfare of the general public and actually provides a safety benefit for people to be able to see the sign
in a high traffic area.

(3) Substantial justice would be done: because the loss to the applicant outweighs any gain to the
general public.

(4) Values of the surrounding properties would not be diminished: because it is an existing sign in a
commercial area.

(5) There is not a fair and substantial relationship that exists between the general public purposes of
the ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property: because the
property is unique as it is landlocked and the visibility of the sign in a high traffic area. The proposed
use is a reasonable one.

B. O’Brien made a motion in CASE NO. 03/15/2023-6 to grant the request for a
variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.c.i to allow an existing sign with area of 63 square feet
whereas a maximum of 30 square feet is permitted in RTE 102 POD & C-1 district, 107
Nashua Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-1 & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road Properties,
LLC (Owner) John Manelas (Applicant).

S. Brunelle seconded the motion.
The motion was granted, 5-0-0. The applicant’s request for a variance was GRANTED.

G. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-7: Request for a variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.d to allow an existing
sign within 10-feet of the front property line in RTE 102 POD & C-I district, 107 Nashua Road Map
6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-l & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road Properties, LLC (Owner) John Manelas
Applicant). ‘

B. O’Brien read the case into the record noting the previous zoning. Paul Botting, from ProSource Signs
Inc., Four Peabody Road Annex, Unit 3, Derry, NH addressed the Board. Karen and John Manelas, owners,
were also in attendance this evening. Chairwoman Benard asked if the information would be the same
as the previous case. P. Botting replied that is correct. He referenced a picture in their packet for the
Board to review where the current sign is located now. Chairwoman Benard asked if the pole sign was
going to stay where it is located now. P. Botting replied that is correct.

He then read the criteria for granting the variance:

(1) The granting of the variance is not contrary to the public interest: because by refurbishing the legally
pre-existing pole sign will improve the appearance of the property and does not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance is observed: because the spirit of the ordinance will be observed allowing
the use of the legally pre-existing pole sign.

12



538
539

540
541

542
543
544
545
546

547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
475
576
57/
578
579
580
581
582

(3) Substantial justice is done: because the owner of the property is subject to loss if the variance is
denied.

(4) Values of surrounding properties are not diminished: because the legally pre-existing pole sign has
stood in this location for many years without a negative impact on surrounding property values.

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because the
property the pole sign is a legally pre-existing sign and not being able to reuse this sign will mean a
new sign will have to be constructed. He said that the proposed use is reasonable.

Chairwoman Benard asked for questions from the Board. M. Feig asked if it would be a safety issue and if
there are any concerns regarding sight distance. N. Codner replied that the state took property and
widened Route 102, so that is why the sign is so close to the roadway.

Chairwoman Benard asked for public input and there was none.
The Board closed public input and began deliberation:

(1) The variance would not be contrary to the public interest: because it does not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance would be observed: because it does not threaten the health, safety or
welfare of the general public and actually provides a safety benefit for people to be able to see the sign
in a high traffic area.

(3) Substantial justice would be done: because the loss to the applicant outweighs any gain to the
general public.

(4) Values of the surrounding properties would not be diminished: because it is an existing sign in a
commercial area.

(5) There is not a fair and substantial relationship that exists between the general public purposes of
the ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property: because the
property is unique as it is landlocked and the visibility of the sign in a high traffic area. The proposed
use is a reasonable one.

B. O’Brien made a motion in CASE NO. 03/15/2023-7 to grant the request for a
variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.d to allow an existing sign within 10 feet of the front
property line in RTE 102 POD & C-I district, 107 Nashua Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned
C-1 & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road Properties, LLC (Owner) John Manelas
(Applicant).

S. Brunelle seconded the motion.

The motion was granted, 5-0-0. The applicant’s request for a variance was GRANTED.
H. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-8: Request for a variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.e.i to allow an existing
pole sign whereas a monument sign type is required in RTE 102 POD & C-I district, 107 Nashua

Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-I & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road Properties, LLC (Owner) John
Manelas Applicant).

13



583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
551
592
593
594
585
596
597

598

599

600
601
602
603
604

605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627

B. O’Brien read the case into the record noting the previous zoning. Paul Botting, from ProSource Signs
Inc., Four Peabody Road Annex, Unit 3, Derry, NH addressed the Board. Karen and John Manelas, owners,
were also in attendance this evening. Chairwoman Benard asked if the answers were the same as the
previous case. P. Botting replied that is correct.

He then read the criteria for granting the variance:

(1) The granting of the variance is not contrary to the public interest: because by refurbishing the legally
pre-existing pole sign will improve the appearance of the property and does not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance is observed: because the spirit of the ordinance will be observed allowing
the use of the legally pre-existing pole sign.

(3) Substantial justice is done: because the owner of the property is subject to loss if the variance is
denied.

(4) Values of surrounding properties are not diminished: because the legally pre-existing pole sign has
stood in this location for many years without a negative impact on surrounding property values.

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because the
property the pole sign is a legally pre-existing sign and not being able to reuse this sign will mean a
new sign will have to be constructed. He said that the proposed use is reasonable.

Chairwoman Benard asked for questions from the Board and there were none.
Chairwoman Benard asked for public input and there was none.
The Board closed public input and began deliberation:

(1) The variance would not be contrary to the public interest: because it does not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance would be observed: because it does not threaten the health, safety or
welfare of the general public and actually provides a safety benefit for people to be able to see the sign
in a high traffic area.

(3) Substantial justice would be done: because the loss to the applicant outweighs any gain to the
general public.

(4) Values of the surrounding properties would not be diminished: because it is an existing sign in a
commercial area.

(5) There is not a fair and substantial relationship that exists between the general public purposes of
the ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property: because the
property is unique as it is landlocked and the visibility of the sign in a high traffic area. The proposed
use is a reasonable one.

B. O’Brien made a motion in CASE NO. 03/15/2023-8 to grant the request for a
variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.5.e.i to allow an existing pole sign whereas a monument
sign type is required in RTE 102 POD & C-I district, 107 Nashua Road Map 6 Lot 35-1,

14



628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672

Zoned C-1 & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road Properties, LLC (Owner) John Manelas
Applicant).

S. Brunelle seconded the motion.
The motion was granted, 5-0-0. The applicant’s request for a variance was GRANTED.

I. CASE NO. 03/15/2023-9: Request for a variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.4.b to allow a wall sign
with an area 96 square feet whereas a maximum of 30 square feet is permitted in RTE 102 POD
& C-l district, 107 Nashua Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-1 & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road
Properties, LLC (Owner) John Manelas (Applicant).

B. O’Brien read the case into the record noting the previous zoning. Paul Botting, from ProSource Signs
Inc., Four Peabody Road Annex, Unit 3, Derry, NH addressed the Board. Karen and John Manelas, owners,
were also in attendance this evening. P. Botting noted that this is a proposed wall sign and it will be
greater than 30 square feet. He commented that the fagade of the building at 107 Nashua Road is 2100
SF. He read from the Route 102 Performance Overlay zone noting that the wall sign can be no more than
20% of the square footage of the facade. He said that in relation to the square footage of the facade a
30 SF wall sign would be too small. He explained that they are requesting a wall sign size of 96 SF so
people can see it and to keep in line with their branding. He reviewed a page from the application that
compared a 30 SF versus a 96 SF sign on the facade of the building. K. Manelas pointed out that
Renegades pub has a smaller SF, but their sign is very comparable. Chairwoman Benard mentioned that
the Board does not compare variances. She stated that just because your building is big does not mean
that you should get a bigger sign.

He then read the criteria for granting the variance:

(1) The granting of the variance is not contrary to the public interest: because by a 96 SF wall sign will
help the motoring public identify Auto Care Plus.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance is observed: because the spirit of the ordinance will be observed buy
allowing a reasonably sized sign to help the motoring public identify Auto Care Plus.

(3) Substantial justice is done: because the owner of the property is subject to loss if the variance is
denied.

(4) Values of surrounding properties are not diminished: because the legally pre-existing pole sign has
stood in this location for many years without a negative impact on surrounding property values.

(5) There is no fair and substantial relationship exists between the general public purpose of the
ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property because the
property is landlocked, cross over other properties and will help the motoring public identify Auto
Care Plus. He said that the proposed use is reasonable.

Chairwoman Benard asked for questions from the Board and there was none.
Chairwoman Benard asked for public input and there was none.
The Board closed public input and began deliberation:

15



673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716

(1) The variance would not be contrary to the public interest: because it does not alter the essential
character of the neighborhood.

(2) The spirit of the ordinance would be observed: because a larger sign would help identify the
business for the motoring public.

(3) Substantial justice would be done: because the loss to the applicant outweighs any gain to the
general public. '
(4) Values of the surrounding properties would not be diminished: because a larger wall sign would
have no affect on property values.

(5) There is not a fair and substantial relationship that exists between the general public purposes of
the ordinance provision and the specific application of that provision to the property: because the
property has low visibility from the street in a high trafficked area. The proposed use is a reasonable
one.

B. O’Brien made a motion in CASE NO. 03/15/2023-9 to grant the request for a
variance from LZO 4.6.6.7.F.4.b to allow a wall sign with an area 96 square feet -
whereas a maximum of 30 square feet is permitted in RTE 102 POD & C-1 district, 107
Nashua Road Map 6 Lot 35-1, Zoned C-l & RTE 102 POD, 107 Nashua Road Properties,
LLC (Owner) John Manelas (Applicant).

S. Brunelle seconded the motion.

The motion was granted, 5-0-0. The applicant’s request for a variance was GRANTED.

V. Communication and Miscellaneous — K. Caron told the Board that the rehearing applicant
would like to be on the April 19, 2023, meeting, as they could not make it here this evening.

V1. Other Business — None
V. Il Adjournment:
B. O’Brien made a motion to adjourn at 9:10 p.m.
M. Feig seconded the motion.

The motion was granted, 5-0-0. The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

TYPED AND TRANSCRIBED BY Beth Morrison, RecordiF?_Secretary. {2 )
APPROVED (X) WITH A MOTION MADE BY &, /" Lare ', ﬂ\ o¥t. 3

CLERK

 SECONDED BY o

16



